P W Earth Negotiations Bulletin
=, Reportin .A }ero;ti;ag.Se.rv;ce.fo; b:nv.ironment and Development Negotiations

L(Service Online at http://www.iisd.ca/forestry/unff/unff8/

Vol. 13 No. 173 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD) Friday, 1 May 2009
UNFF8 HIGHLIGHTS: matters are discussed, delegates agreed on text enhancing
THURSDAY, 30 APRIL 2009 cooperation ar_1d coordination 1n the area of fqrests.
) On promoting efforts to facilitate cooperation,

UNFF8 delegates convened throughout the day and into SWITZERLAND asked for the deletion of “workshops and
the night in Working Group I (WGI) and a contact group. guidelines.” He also suggested, and after objection by some
WGI continued discussions on the draft resolution on forests withdrew, adding “innovative and effective approaches” such
in a changing environment. The contact group continued as country- and region-led initiatives. The AFRICAN GROUP
deliberations on the Co-Chairs’ draft text on financing for SFM.  requested adding intergovernmental processes, while CHINA
Delegates also convened in a Friends of the Chair group in the suggested requesting the Secretariat to facilitate regional
morning to discuss text on a global forest fund. contributions.
WORKING GROUP I crises he EU ke for maaining rference to specifc oisn,

PRESENTATION ON WOMEN AND VIOLENT ; & P ’

with the AFRICAN GROUP requesting “energy” instead of
“fuelwood,” and COLOMBIA “economic “instead of “financial.”
Delegates agreed to Co-Chair Mero’s proposal for “challenges”
instead of “crises,” and CHINA asked for adding “opportunities.”

Delegates agreed to delete a paragraph inviting the Secretariat
to prepare background studies on issues relevant to UNFF9’s
theme on forests for people, livelihoods and poverty reduction,
and other issues.

On the Secretariat synthesizing current information on the
valuation of forest goods and services, the AFRICAN GROUP
requested deleting “including payments for ecosystem services,”
which was opposed by many delegations. Delegates eventually
agreed on NLBI language referring to “the range of forest values
as well as ways to reflect such values in the marketplace.”

CONFLICTS: Marie-Ange Lukiana Mufwankolo, Minister for
Gender, Family and Children, Democratic Republic of Congo,
presented on forests and women in areas of armed conflicts
and impacts on forests. She said that the war in the Democratic
Republic of Congo and the consequent displacement of two
million people have had devastating effects on the forests,
including forests in protected areas, and on biodiversity. She
called for UNFF to associate itself with the campaign on raising
awareness of the conditions faced by women and child victims of
the armed gangs in the Congo’s forests.

FORESTS IN A CHANGING ENVIRONMENT: On the
UNFF Secretariat cooperating with international organizations
outside CPF, delegates agreed to reference only CITES and the

Rgmsa}r Cpnvention, deleting reference to “other agreements On the paragraphs for strengthening cooperation, the EU
with significant forest-related mandates.” queried the purpose of referencing South-South cooperation
On indicators for reporting progress towards SFM and the specifically. BRAZIL, with COLOMBIA and CHINA, stressed
global objectives, delegates agreed to: the EU’s proposal to that South-South cooperation is of particular importance as the
report also on national measures and policies; and China’s countries concerned have the chance to share lessons learned
proposals to develop a reporting format and report on regarding, inter alia, capacity building and implementation. He
1nterna'g10nal cooperation. Delegates debated at length whether also questioned why the strategy for supporting the development
to specify that indicators should be “based on the seven of South-South, North-South and triangular cooperation should
thematic elements of SE M,” and.eventually agreed to emulate be presented at UNFF11. The US supported the calls for South-
NLBI language, by taking them into account “as a reference South cooperation but preferred text referring to strategies as
framework.” BRAZIL and COLOMBIA, opposed bY the EU opposed to initiatives. URUGUAY proposed text reflecting all
and SWITZERLAND, requested adding “as appropriate.” Many types of cooperation. BRAZIL, supported by the US, suggested
opposed an EU proposal to explore the need for new indicators,  that, due to the importance of South-South cooperation, a new

which the EU later withdrew. paragraph should be inserted specifically referencing South-

Delegates agreed on a paragraph to explore opportunities South initiatives. BRAZIL, with CHINA, the AFRICAN GROUP
for collaboration with the Secretariats of the Rio Conventions and others, called for the strategy to be presented at UNFF9.
to develop joint targeted activities. On seeking participation in In the evening, delegates engaged in the third reading of the
the Rio Conventions’ Joint Liaison Group when forest-related Co-Chairs’ draft resolution. They agreed to delete a preambular

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Reem Hajjar, Stefan Jungcurt, Ph.D., Kate Louw, Laura Russo, and Peter Wood, Ph.D.
The Digital Editor is Dan Birchall. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>. The Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI
<kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the United Kingdom (through the Department for International Development — DFID), the Government of the United
States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans and International Environmental and Scientific Affairs), the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the
Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature
Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European Commission (DG-ENV), and the Italian Ministry for the Environment, Land
and Sea. General Support for the Bulletin during 2009 is provided by the Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Australia, the Austrian Federal Ministry of
Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International,
Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental
Strategies - IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (through the Global Industrial and Social Progress Research Institute - GISPRI), the Government of’
Iceland, and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). Funding for the translation of the Bulletin into Spanish at this meeting has been provided by the Ministry of
Environment of Spain. The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin
may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the
Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@jiisd.org>, +1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11A, New York, New York 10022, USA. The ENB Team at UNFF8 can be
contacted by e-mail at <reem@jiisd.org>.




=

RE#U[ting
Services

Friday, 1 May 2009

"B Earth Negotiations Bulletin

Vol. 13 No. 173 Page 2

paragraph recognizing the vulnerability of low forest cover
countries and small island developing states to climate change
and their challenges and needs to adapt to climate change,
agreeing to Brazil’s concern that this would alter the list of
vulnerable countries recognized under the UNFCCC.

On SFM’s role in addressing environmental change,
delegates debated at length how to refer to environmental
problems addressed by other conventions, with BRAZIL and
VENEZUELA opposing references to mitigating climate
change, and the EU and the AFRICAN GROUP insisting on
reference to desertification and forest land degradation. They
eventually agreed to a simplified list of environmental problems
SFM can contribute to, including climate change, forest and
land degradation, and conservation of soil, water and forest
biodiversity.

Delegates agreed on the paragraph on taking note of the
IPCC’s Fourth Assessment Report and recent joint initiatives
of the CPF on forest and climate change including the Strategic
Framework for Forests and Climate Change. Delegates agreed
on welcoming regional and subregional initiatives as well as the
contribution of Major Groups.

On the text recalling the relevant decisions of the UNCCD,
UNFCCC, CBD and the UN Commission on Crime Prevention
and Criminal Justice (CCPCJ), delegates agreed to refer to
“relevant decisions and objectives.” VENEZUELA asked for
more time to consult on the CCPCJ decision and its implications.
Discussions continued into the night.

CONTACT GROUP ON SFM FINANCING

In the morning, the G-77/CHINA stressed that the outcomes
of the negotiation on financing are considered as a package,
with the first component being a global forest fund, and the
second being the facilitative process. She noted if donors
continued to bracket text referencing the global forest fund
during negotiations, then the G-77/CHINA wished to bracket text
referencing the facilitative process.

JAPAN recalled their earlier amendment to the G-77/
China’s proposal, to consider the need to establish a fund, and
urged delegates to continue negotiations along these lines.
AUSTRALIA and the EU said that it would be useful to discuss
the text on the facilitative process, even though views were
still polarized and text bracketed. Chair Tharyat suspended the
meeting while a Friends of the Chair group convened to discuss
a way forward.

Two proposals emerged from the Friends of the Chair
discussion. The G-77/CHINA proposed deciding to establish
a global forest fund following a review to be undertaken by
an ad hoc working group, which would be established with
the mandate to elaborate the terms of reference of the fund by
UNFF9. The EU made a counter proposal, to decide to convene
an ad hoc working group with a mandate to consider the need,
appropriateness and feasibility of a financing arrangement
including the possibility of a voluntary fund, for consideration at
UNFF11.

Delegates discussed these two proposals in a smaller contact
group in the afternoon. After clarifying the differences between
a working group and an expert group, delegates agreed to refer
to an ad hoc expert group (AHEG). After the G-77/CHINA
and the EU continued to oppose each others’ proposals, Chair
Tharyat tabled compromise text, deciding to establish an AHEG
with a mandate to consider the appropriateness and feasibility
of establishing a voluntary fund, taking into account the

Forum’s review of the performance of the facilitative process,
for UNFF10’s consideration. Donor countries supported the
Chair’s proposal, and made minor amendments. G-77/CHINA
proposed alternative text to decide to establish an AHEG with
a view to establishing a voluntary global forest fund at UNFF9,
taking into account the Forum’s review of the performance of
the facilitative process, and that the AHEG’s mandate would
be to make recommendations for the operalization of the fund
for its adoption by UNFF9. Not reaching agreement, delegates
decided to move on to discussing paragraphs on the facilitative
mechanism.

In the evening, noting the need to streamline several
paragraphs on the facilitative mechanism, the G-77/CHINA
proposed text on deciding to establish a facilitative process,
undertaken by the UNFF Secretariat and the CPF, which would:
mobilize financial resources; facilitate access to SFM finance
and technology; enhance coordination among relevant funding
sources; and support the global forest fund’s implementation.
They also proposed that an implementation committee would
monitor the process’s implementation. Noting the need for
informal consultations on the new proposal, delegates decided
to move on to the rest of the text. Discussions continued into the
night.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Seeing delegates stocking up on food and drink is a clear sign
that a UNFF session is nearing its end, and agreement is yet far
away.

As the adventurers of financing set out to cross the forest of
brackets, some were frightened by the ultimate question of their
undertaking “what happens if we cannot reach agreement?”
Most did, however, keep their optimistic spirit, even through
bleary eyes and hoarse voices, and continued in their search
for compromise text. But the decision on whether or not to
establish a global forest fund, which took up most of the day’s
deliberations, had delegates commenting that compromise
proposals by either side, donors and recipients alike, were
“compromising progress” rather than reconciling polarized
positions. One delegate contemplated that donors would never
agree to set up a fund without establishing a facilitative process
and assessing its performance beforehand to see if a fund was
even appropriate. Others were dispirited by the time lost at this
session, having only found out near the last day that several
donor country delegates had come to New York without a
mandate to negotiate a fund in the first place.

The companions seeking to save forests from the changing
environment, on the other hand, were haunted by the ghosts of
the NLBI. As delegates tried to resort to NLBI text as a way out
of repeated deadlock over references to concepts such as the
seven thematic elements of SFM, they encountered unexpected
difficulties in using such quotes “appropriately,” meaning
without reinterpreting the NLBI. One group of delegates
commented that “it’s the ambiguity embedded in the NLBI that
will keep us here all night.” Others pointed to the “finance drain’
referring to the problem that the discussions on financing are
using up most of the energy and creativity of many delegations,
making it harder than ever to compose text around the many
linguistic pitfalls of international forest policy.

ENB SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: The Earth Negotiations
Bulletin summary and analysis of UNFF8 will be available on
Monday, 4 May 2009 online at: http://www.iisd.ca/forestry/unft/
unffs

B


http://www.iisd.ca/forestry/unff/unff8/
http://www.iisd.ca/forestry/unff/unff8/


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


